
 
 

 
 

C A B I N E T  
P R O C U R E M E N T  A N D  

I N S O U R C I N G  
C O M M I T T E E  

Monday 7 March 2022 
at 5.00 pm Hackney Town Hall, Mare 

Street, London E8 1EA 

 

The live stream can be viewed here: 
https://youtu.be/MSoNkKWXUvI  

Back-up: https://youtu.be/ACN3JLA0SuA  
Members of the Committee: 

Councillor Robert Chapman, Cabinet Member for Finance (Chair) 
Councillor Anntoinette Bramble, Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Education, 
Young People and Children's Social Care 
Councillor Christopher Kennedy, Cabinet Member for Health, Adult Social Care and 
Leisure 
Councillor Caroline Woodley, Cabinet Member for Families, Early Years and Play 

 
 
Mark Carroll  
Chief Executive 
Thursday 24 February 2022 
www.hackney.gov.uk 

Contact: Andrew Spragg 
Team Leader - Governance 

governance@hackney.gov.uk  
 

 

https://youtu.be/MSoNkKWXUvI
https://youtu.be/ACN3JLA0SuA
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/
mailto:governance@hackney.gov.uk


 
 

Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee 
Monday 7 March 2022 
Agenda 
 
1 Apologies for Absence   
 
2 Urgent Business   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. Late 
items of urgent business will be considered under the agenda item where they 
appear. New items of unrestricted urgent business will be dealt with under item 7 
below. New items of exempt urgent business will be dealt with at item 14 below. 
 
3 Declarations of Interest - Members to declare as appropriate   
 
A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter 
who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes 
apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 
  
A Member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are 
defined at Paragraphs 8.1-15.2 of Section Two of Part 5 of the Constitution  and 
Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
4 Notice of Intention to Conduct Business in Private, Any Representation 

Received and the Response to Any Such Representations   
 
On occasions part of the Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee meeting 
will be held in private and will not be open to the public if an item is being considered 
that is likely to lead to the disclosure of exempt or confidential information. In 
accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 (the “Regulations”), members of 
the public can make representations about why that part of the meeting should be 
open to the public.  
 
This agenda contains exempt items as set out at Item 12 and 13.  
 
No representations with regard to these have been received.  
 
This is the formal 5 clear day notice under the Regulations to confirm that this 
Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee meeting will be partly held in private 
for the reasons set out in this Agenda. 
 



 
 

5 Deputations/Petitions/Questions   
 
6 Unrestricted Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Cabinet Procurement 

and Insourcing Committee Held on 14 February 2022   
(Pages 9 - 14) 

 
To confirm the unrestricted minutes of the meeting of Cabinet Procurement and 
Insourcing Committee held on 14 February 2022. 
 
7 Any Other Unrestricted Business The Chair Considers Urgent   
 
8 FCR S071 Vehicle Removals and Car Pound Services   

(Pages 15 - 26) 
 
9 CED S069 Contract Award Report for the Selection of a Contractor for 

the Main Works for Marian Court   
(Pages 27 - 58) 

 
10 Date of Future Meetings   
 
Meetings will be held at 5.00pm on: 
 
2022 
11 April 
 
11 Exclusion of The Public and Press   
 
Note from the Director of Legal and Governance Services 
 
Items 12 and 13 allows for the consideration of exempt information in relation to Item 
8 and 9 
 
Proposed resolution: 
 
THAT the press and public be excluded from the proceedings of Cabinet 
Procurement and Insourcing Committee during consideration of Exempt Item 12 on 
the agenda on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted, that were members of the public to be present, there would be a 
disclosure of exempt business as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 
 
12 FCR S071 Vehicle Removals and Car Pound Services - Exempt 

Appendices  
(Pages 59 - 60) 

 
13 CED S069 Contract Award Report for the Selection of a Contractor for 

the Main Works for Marian Court - Exempt appendices   
(Pages 61 - 150) 

 
14 Any Other Exempt Business the Chair Considers Urgent   
 



 
 

 
Public Attendance  
 
The Town Hall is not presently open to the general public, and there is limited 
capacity within the meeting rooms. However, the High Court has ruled that where 
meetings are required to be ‘open to the public’ or ‘held in public’ then members of 
the public are entitled to have access by way of physical attendance at the meeting. 
The Council will need to ensure that access by the public is in line with any Covid-19 
restrictions that may be in force from time to time and also in line with public health 
advice. 
 
Those members of the public who wish to observe a meeting are still encouraged to 
make use of the live-stream facility in the first instance. You can find the link on the 
agenda front sheet.  
 
Members of the public who would ordinarily attend a meeting to ask a question, 
make a deputation or present a petition will be able to attend if they wish. They may 
also let the relevant committee support officer know that they would like the Chair of 
the meeting to ask the question, make the deputation or present the petition on their 
behalf (in line with current Constitutional arrangements). 
 
In the case of the Planning Sub-Committee, those wishing to make representations 
at the meeting should attend in person where possible. 
 
Regardless of why a member of the public wishes to attend a meeting, they will 
need to advise the relevant committee support officer of their intention in 
advance of the meeting date. You can find contact details for the committee 
support officer on the agenda front page. This is to support track and trace. The 
committee support officer will be able to confirm whether the proposed attendance 
can be accommodated with the room capacities that exist to ensure that the meeting 
is covid-secure. 
 
As there will be a maximum capacity in each meeting room, priority will be 
given to those who are attending to participate in a meeting rather than 
observe. 
 
Members of the public who are attending a meeting for a specific purpose, rather 
than general observation, are encouraged to leave the meeting at the end of the item 
for which they are present. This is particularly important in the case of the Planning 
Sub-Committee, as it may have a number of items on the agenda involving public 
representation. 
 

Before attending the meeting 
 
The public, staff and councillors are asked to review the information below as this is 
important in minimising the risk for everyone. 
 
If you are experiencing covid symptoms, you should follow government guidance. 
Under no circumstances should you attend a meeting if you are experiencing covid 
symptoms. 
 



 
 

Anyone experiencing symptoms of Coronavirus is eligible to book a swab test to find 
out if they have the virus. You can register for a test after checking your symptoms 
through the NHS website.  If you do not have access to the internet, or have difficulty 
with the digital portals, you are able to call the 119 service to book a test. 
 
If you’re an essential worker and you are experiencing Coronavirus symptoms, you 
can apply for priority testing through GOV.UK by following the guidance for essential 
workers. You can also get tested through this route if you have symptoms of 
coronavirus and live with an essential worker. 
 
Availability of home testing in the case of people with symptoms is limited, so please 
use testing centres where you can.  
 
Even if you are not experiencing covid symptoms, you are requested to take an 
asymptomatic test (lateral flow test) in the 24 hours before attending the meeting.  
 
You can do so by visiting any lateral flow test centre; details of the rapid testing sites 
in Hackney can be found here. Alternatively, you can obtain home testing kits from 
pharmacies or order them here.  
 
You must not attend a lateral flow test site if you have Coronavirus symptoms; rather 
you must book a test appointment at your nearest walk-through or drive-through 
centre.  
 
Lateral flow tests take around 30 minutes to deliver a result, so please factor the time 
it will take to administer the test and then wait for the result when deciding when to 
take the test.  
 
If your lateral flow test returns a positive result then you must follow Government 
guidance; self-isolate and make arrangements for a PCR test. Under no 
circumstances should you attend the meeting.   
 

Attending the Town Hall for meetings 
 
To make our buildings Covid-safe, it is very important that you observe the rules and 
guidance on social distancing, one-way systems, hand washing, and the wearing of 
masks (unless you are exempt from doing so). You must follow all the signage and 
measures that have been put in place. They are there to keep you and others safe. 
 
To minimise risk, we ask that Councillors arrive fifteen minutes before the meeting 
starts and leave the meeting room immediately after the meeting has concluded. The 
public will be invited into the room five minutes before the meeting starts. 
 
Members of the public will be permitted to enter the building via the front entrance of 
the Town Hall no earlier than ten minutes before the meeting is scheduled to start. 
They will be required to sign in and have their temperature checked as they enter the 
building. Security will direct them to the Chamber or Committee Room as 
appropriate. 
 
Seats will be allocated, and people must remain in the seat that has been allocated 
to them. 
 



 
 

Refreshments will not be provided, so it is recommended that you bring a bottle of 
water with you. 
 

RIGHTS OF PRESS AND PUBLIC TO REPORT ON 
MEETINGS   
 
Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the press 
and  public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its committees, 
through any  audio, visual or written methods and may use digital and social media 
providing they do  not disturb the conduct of the meeting and providing that the 
person reporting or  providing the commentary is present at the meeting.  
 
Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to notify the  
Council’s Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if possible, or any 
time  prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the start of the meeting.  
 
The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area from 
which  all recording must take place at a meeting.  
 
The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, hear 
and  record the meeting. If those intending to record a meeting require any other 
reasonable  facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring Officer in advance of 
the meeting and  will only be provided if practicable to do so.  
 
The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present 
recording  a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting. Anyone 
acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease recording or 
may be excluded  from the meeting.  
 
Disruptive behaviour may include: moving from any designated  recording area; 
causing excessive noise; intrusive lighting; interrupting the meeting; or  filming 
members of the public who have asked not to be filmed.  
 
All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on recording  
councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the conduct of the  
meeting. The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the public present if they  
have objections to being visually recorded. Those visually recording a meeting are  
asked to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed or photographed.  
Failure by someone recording a meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not 
wish  to be filmed and photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to 
cease  recording or in their exclusion from the meeting.  
 
If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to 
consider  confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all 
recording equipment  must be removed from the meeting. The press and public are 
not permitted to use any  means which might enable them to see or hear the 
proceedings whilst they are excluded  from a meeting and confidential or exempt 
information is under consideration.  
 
Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted. 
 



 
 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS  
 
Hackney Council’s Code of Conduct applies to all Members of the Council, the 
Mayor and co-opted Members.  
  
This note is intended to provide general guidance for Members on declaring 
interests.  However, you may need to obtain specific advice on whether you have an 
interest in a  particular matter. If you need advice, you can contact:  
 
● Director of Legal and Governance Services  
● the Legal Adviser to the committee; or  
● Governance Services.  
 
If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before 
the  meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the 
circumstances  before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take.   
 
You will have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter if it:   
 
i. relates to an interest that you have already registered in Parts A and C of the 
Register of  Pecuniary Interests of you or your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living 
with you as if they  were your spouse/civil partner;  
 
ii. relates to an interest that should be registered in Parts A and C of the Register of  
Pecuniary Interests of your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living with you as if they 
were  your spouse/civil partner, but you have not yet done so; or  
 
iii. affects your well-being or financial position or that of your spouse/civil partner, or 
anyone  living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner.   
 
If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in an item on the  agenda you must:  
 
i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant agenda 
item)  as soon as it becomes apparent to you (subject to the rules regarding 
sensitive interests).   
 
ii. You must leave the meeting when the item in which you have an interest is being  
discussed. You cannot stay in the meeting whilst discussion of the item takes place 
and  you cannot vote on the matter. In addition, you must not seek to improperly 
influence the  decision.  
 
iii. If you have, however, obtained dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or 
Standards  Committee you may remain in the meeting and participate in the meeting. 
If dispensation  has been granted it will stipulate the extent of your involvement, such 
as whether you can  only be present to make representations, provide evidence or 
whether you are able to  fully participate and vote on the matter in which you have a 
pecuniary interest.  
 
Do you have any other non-pecuniary interest on any matter on  the agenda which is 
being considered at the meeting?  
 
You will have ‘other non-pecuniary interest’ in a matter if:  



 
 

 
i. It relates to an external body that you have been appointed to as a Member or in 
another  capacity; or   
 
ii. It relates to an organisation or individual which you have actively engaged in 
supporting.  
 
If you have other non-pecuniary interest in an item on the  agenda you must:  
 
i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant agenda 
item)  as soon as it becomes apparent to you.   
 
ii. You may remain in the meeting, participate in any discussion or vote provided that  
contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence matters are not under 
consideration  relating to the item in which you have an interest.   
 
iii. If you have an interest in a contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence 
matter  under consideration, you must leave the meeting unless you have obtained a  
dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee. You cannot stay 
in the  meeting whilst discussion of the item takes place and you cannot vote on the 
matter. In  addition, you must not seek to improperly influence the decision. Where 
members of the  public are allowed to make representations, or to give evidence or 
answer questions  about the matter you may, with the permission of the meeting, 
speak on a matter then  leave the meeting. Once you have finished making your 
representation, you must leave  the meeting whilst the matter is being discussed.   
 
iv. If you have been granted dispensation, in accordance with the Council’s 
dispensation  procedure you may remain in the meeting. If dispensation has been 
granted it will  stipulate the extent of your involvement, such as whether you can only 
be present to make  representations, provide evidence or whether you are able to 
fully participate and vote on  the matter in which you have a non pecuniary interest.   
 
Further Information  
 
Advice can be obtained from Dawn Carter-McDonald, Director of Legal and 
Governance Services via email dawn.carter-mcdonald@hackney.gov.uk  

mailto:dawn.carter-mcdonald@hackney.gov.uk


 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT AND 

INSOURCING COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 14 FEBRUARY 2022 
 
Chair 
 

Cllr Robert Chapman in the Chair 

Councillors Present:  
 

Cllr Caroline Woodley 

  

Apologies:  
 

Deputy Mayor Anntoinette Bramble 

 
Officers in Attendance Rotimi Ajilore, Head of Procurement 

Andrew Spragg, Governance Services Team 
Leader 
 
Remote attendees  
Candace Bloomfield, Directorate Procurement 
Manager 
Merle Ferguson, Procurement Strategy and 
Systems Lead  
Ian Holland, Head of Leisure, Parks and Green 
Spaces 
Mario Kahraman, Senior ICT Support Analyst 
Jade Mercieca, Strategic Procurement Manager 
(Interim) 
Sam Parry, Parks Development Manager  
Adi-Naitey Puplampu, Procurement Category 
Manager: Corporate Services 
Patrick Rodger, Senior Lawyer 
 

  
The meeting was live-streamed here: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8w4g_EfGk64  
 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Deputy Mayor Bramble and Councillor Kennedy.  
  
Councillor Kennedy joined the meeting remotely. 
 

2 URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - Members to declare as appropriate  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8w4g_EfGk64


Monday 14 February 2022  

4 NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN PRIVATE, ANY 
REPRESENTATION  RECEIVED AND THE RESPONSE TO ANY SUCH 
REPRESENTATIONS  
 
There were no notices received. 
 

5 DEPUTUATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS  
 
There were none received. 
 

6 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF CABINET 
PROCUREMENT AND INSOURCING COMMITTEE HELD ON 17 JANUARY 2022  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee 
meeting on 17 January 2022 were approved. 
 

7 NH S055 APPOINTMENT OF DOCKLESS BIKE-SHARE SCHEME OPERATORS IN 
HACKNEY - CONTRACT APPROVAL  
 

7.1  The report was introduced by the Sustainable Transport and Engagement Manager. 
Cllr Woodley queried the longer term objectives of a scheme of this nature and what 
support was being provided for cycle users in terms of training. The Committee was 
informed that the evidence did not suggest e-bike purchases did not increase as a 
running a scheme of this nature. Officers commented that the market volatility around 
schemes of this nature made it difficult for the Council to provide this service directly, 
but it was recognised there was a desire amongst the residents for this scheme and it 
supported the Council’s priorities. Officers highlighted that the provider would be 
making a contribution to the promotion of cycling across the borough. 

 
7.2  The Committee discussed performance monitoring and it was agreed that the key 

performance indicators would be circulated and included in the minutes. They are 
enclosed as appendix 1. Officers provided reassurances about the regulatory and 
enforcement position of the Council in respect to ensuring the scheme providers were 
minimising unnecessary obstructions and cycle recovery.  

 
7.3  Cllr Kennedy was informed that officers had spoken with neighbouring boroughs in 

respect to the scheme. It was highlighted that there longer-term ambition of London 
Councils and Transport for London (TfL) for a London wide approach, and this had 
influenced the proposed length of the contract. It was confirmed there were 64 corrals 
at the moment and that these would expand over time in line with demand. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
To approve the appointment of Bidder D (see Exempt Appendix B for details), as the 
sole operator of a Dockless Bike-Share Scheme using cycle bays provided by the 
Council. The appointment to operate in Hackney shall be on the basis of a fee paying 
concession agreement for an initial period of two years with up to two further optional 
annual extensions. 
 
 
 

Page 10



Monday 14 February 2022  

REASONS FOR DECISION  
 
Transport for London’s (TfL) cycle hire scheme only operates in the southern fringes 
of the Borough and not the north and east of the Borough. A dockless service 
presents an opportunity to support the London Mayoral proposal 6 regarding new 
models of cycle hire. 
 

8 BRIEFING NOTE: PARKS AND GREEN SPACES - CONCESSION 
OPPORTUNITIES  
 

8.1 The Parks Development Manager introduced the report. Cllr Woodley welcomed the 
briefing and highlighted the requirements for concessions to use bio-degradable 
packaging. The Committee discussed how the proposals were supporting the 
Council’s priorities around sustainability.    
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the briefing. 
 

9 ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
 
There was no urgent business to consider. 
 

10 DATE OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The Committee noted the dates of its future meetings: 
 
2022 
7 March  
11 April 
 

11 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 
The Committee did not resolve to exclude the public and press as all business had 
concluded without this being required. 
 
Duration of the meeting: 5pm - 5.31 pm  
 
Contact: 
Andrew Spragg, Governance Services Team Leader 
andrew.spragg@hackney.gov.uk  

Page 11

mailto:andrew.spragg@hackney.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



CABINET PROCUREMENT AND INSOURCING COMMITTEE
14 FEBRUARY 2022 MINUTES

NH S055 APPOINTMENT OF DOCKLESS BIKE-SHARE SCHEME OPERATORS IN
HACKNEY - CONTRACT APPROVAL
APPENDIX 1 -

Performance metrics (reported monthly):

1. Total Trips Ending in Hackney
2. Distinct Users
3. Average Distance Cycled
4. Average Time Cycled
5. Average Bike Used per Day
6. Average Bikes in Hackney
7. Highest Ridership Day
8. Highest Ridership Hour
9. Average Fare
10. No. of Bikes Left Outside Bay
11. Parking Compliance Rate (%)
12. Number of Complaints
13. Avg. Complaint Response Time
14. Best 5 Bays
15. Worst 5 Bays

1. Key Performance Indicators:

No
.

Criterion/Indicator. Target

1 Net uptake in cycling and/or number of cycling miles
or journeys covered in Hackney from one monthly
reporting period to the other (see metrics 3, 4 and 5
at paragraph 5.1)

Positive/Increasing

2 Average time to recover littering/obstructing bicycles
from public spaces and roadways

Bicycles to be removed within 1 hours
of receiving notice by the Council or
members of the public within the
periods of 7am - 6pm (Monday to
Friday) where the bicycle(s) cause(s)
an obstruction or cause(s) a health
and safety risk

3 No of reports of littering bicycles per quarter (cf.
metric 11, paragraph 5.1)

100%

Page 5

Minute Item 7

Page 13



4 Average time to make faulty bikes safe or
unavailable to the public

Maximum of 12 hours from
notification

5 Average time to resolve complaints (cf. metric 13,
paragraph 5.1)

24 hours maximum from the time
of first report

6 Number of bikes in service Minimum of 90% of bikes

Page 6Page 14



VEHICLE REMOVALS AND CAR POUND SERVICES
CONTRACT APPROVAL
Key Decision No. FCR S071

CABINET PROCUREMENT
AND INSOURCING
COMMITTEE MEETING DATE
(2021/22)
7 MARCH 2022

CLASSIFICATION:
Open with Exempt Appendices

If exempt, the reason will be listed in the main
body of this report.

WARD(S) AFFECTED
All Wards
CABINET MEMBER:
Cllr Mete Coban, Cabinet Member for Energy, Waste, Transport and Public Realm

KEY DECISION
Yes

REASON
Affects two or more wards

GROUP DIRECTOR:
Ajman Ali, Group Director of Neighbourhoods and Housing

1. CABINET MEMBER’S INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report requests approval for the award of the Vehicle Removals and Car Pound
Services contract. This contract deals with the removal of vehicles parked in
contravention and nuisance vehicles as part of the statutory process underpinned
by the Traffic Management Act and the Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act.

1.2 This contract is essential for the Council’s ability to effectively manage abandoned,
nuisance, illegally parked and untaxed vehicles on Hackney roads. The removal
service also plays a significant role for the Council in tackling blue badge fraud and
misuse. Without removing these vehicles, the offender has higher chances of
getting away and taking up the valuable parking space from those who need it the
most.

1.3 The proposed contract will ensure that the aspects of Hackney Council’s robust
parking enforcement regime that can not be in-sourced will still be carried out and
will support the implementation of the new policies that were signed off by Cabinet
in December 2020.

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



2. GROUP DIRECTOR’S INTRODUCTION

2.1 This procurement exercise is a follow on from the Council’s decision to insource the
Parking Enforcement Contract (PEC) when it expires on 31 March 2022.

2.2 The Removals Service will not be insourced as part of the PEC as specialistic
equipment (removal trucks), specialist training (HGV drivers) and specialist facilities
(disposal, dismantling and auction house) are needed and the Council is not
currently in a position to deliver these directly in a commercially acceptable manner.

2.3 This report details the background and context to the services provided under the
vehicle removals and car pound contract and details the procurement process
which has been undertaken, and seeks approval to award the contract to Supplier A
who has been selected following completion of that process.

2.4 The contract will be for an initial five year period with two options to extend for a
further three and two years if needed. The service will be operated based on the
Terms and Conditions drafted by the Hackney Council Legal Team.

2.5 This contract award ensures that the Council continues to carry out its statutory
duty under the Traffic Management Act 2004, the Road Traffic 1988 and the Refuse
Amenity Act 1978 (as amended) to carry out removal of vehicles, and is
recommended to the Committee.

3. RECOMMENDATION(S)

Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee is recommended to approve the
appointment of Supplier A as the supplier for the provision of Removals and
Pound Services within the borough of Hackney, for a 5-year contract period
commencing on 1 April 2022 with an option to extend for a further maximum
period of 5 years (on 3-year and 2-year extension intervals).

4. RELATED DECISIONS

4.1 The Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee report for the insourcing of
elements of Parking Services Enforcement was approved in November 2020.

4.2 In December 2020 Cabinet approved three new policies - the Removals Policy,
Untaxed Policy and Abandoned Vehicles Policy.

4.3 On 13 July 2021, the Hackney Procurement Board gave approval for the
commencement of the process for the Vehicle Removals and Pound Services
procurement.

5. REASONS FOR DECISION/OPTIONS APPRAISAL.

5.1 The business case approved by Hackney Procurement Board set out a Removal
Services Framework, to run for four years from 1 April 2022, consisting of four lots:

Page 16



Lot 1 - Vehicle Removal Service (Parking)

Lot 2 - Abandoned Vehicles Service

Lot 3 - Untaxed Vehicles Service

Lot 4 - Car Pound Services

5.2 However, before the specification was put together and the tender process started,
the Council sent out an information leaflet and Expression of Interest questionnaire.
This is intended to give prospective suppliers the opportunity to help Hackney
Council set up these important services, and also so that the specification produced
is deliverable whilst taking advantage of developments in the marketplace that will
benefit the users.

5.3 The Council received two responses and these replies pointed to the fact that
suppliers could deliver all lots with ease, however provision of car pounds in
Hackney, or within a reasonable distance of the borough is an issue as appropriate
sites are not readily available.

5.4 At the conclusion of this exercise, a decision was taken to merge the initial four (4)
lots into one single lot. A briefing note was presented to the Hackney Procurement
Board to notify it of this change.

5.5 The supplier will carry out all removals within the borough and also provide a pound
that will be used until the proposed Hackney car pound site has been established.

5.6 The Hackney-owned car pound will then be utilised by the successful supplier, and
will increase capability for vehicle removals.

5.7 The cost of removal services is entirely funded by Parking Services and is already
within the existing budgets. However, removal services allow the Council to
generate further income through the issuance of Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) which
will be implemented by the end of 2022 as additional system developments are
required.

5.8 The supplier’s performance will be measured by 10 Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) and the contract managed by a dedicated team within Parking Services. A
copy of the KPIs can be found in Appendix 3.

6. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS (CONSIDERED AND REJECTED)

6.1 Insourcing: This option was considered but due to the requirement of specialist
equipment (removal trucks and their maintenance) and having vehicle disposal
facilities (to crush, dismantle and store vehicles) the Council is not in a position to
carry out this service on its own at this stage. This option was therefore rejected.

Page 17



6.2 Procurement of Separate Contracts: This option would allow the Council to focus on
specific requirements for each part of the service but it would be too
resource-intensive and time consuming. The model used allows the best supplier to
provide proper coordination when dealing with all four interconnected removal
services. This option was therefore rejected.

6.3 Use of External Frameworks: The option to procure the four service requirements
(lots) via Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO), Crown Commercial
Service (CCS) and Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation were considered. They all
have frameworks relating to enforcement and parking management. However,
these are not appropriate as they have a focus on financial / debt recovery and
operation of car parks or IT systems and software for parking management and do
not meet the Council’s needs. This option was therefore rejected

6.4 Do Nothing: This option was also considered but discarded as the current contract
ends on 31 March 2022 and would result in the Council not being able to deliver its
statutory duty to remove vehicles.

7. PROJECT PROGRESS

7.1 Developments since the Business Case approval: An Expression of Interest
questionnaire was sent out after the approval of the business case. Further details
are in Points 5.2 to 5.4 above

7.2 Whole Life Costing/Budgets: The cost of removal services is entirely funded by
Parking Services and is within existing budgets. The new contract is expected to
cost in the same region as the current arrangement, however, the new contract will
deliver new income streams. In the future a new pound should offer better removal
storage meaning more vehicles can be removed and stored. The new abandoned
vehicle policy and untaxed vehicle policy will provide the Council with the ability to
charge for removal fees, storage fees and the Council will start the issuing of Fixed
Penalty Notices (FPN).

8. SAVINGS

8.1 The new contract is expected to cost the same as the current service provision.
There are new policies (approved by Cabinet) that are expected to create new
income streams and therefore the overall cost of the service is expected to reduce.

9 SUSTAINABILITY ISSUES

9.1 Procuring Green

9.2 The selected contractor will dispose of all vehicles that have been signed off for
disposal in a manner that complies with all relevant legislation relating to the
disposal of waste including (without limitation) all other relevant provisions of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 and the Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978.

Page 18



9.3 The contractor will look to upgrade their removal vehicles to electric vehicles as
soon as possible by doing a yearly review on the availability of these vehicles.

9.4 Procuring for a Better Society

9.5 The selected contractor has committed to employ from the local area (Hackney)
first.

9.6 Employing from the local area will help to minimise travel time and improve local
knowledge of the area.

9.7 This policy by the selected contractor will in turn give a better standard of living and
a shorter working day for the staff.

9.8 Procuring Fair Delivery

9.9 During the procurement process, the selected contractor has shown compliance
with the fundamental requirements of the Modern Slavery Act (2015) in addition to
the existing requirement on equalities and non-discrimination of their workforce.

9.10 There is also a commitment from the selected bidder to pay the London Living
Wage (LLW).

9.11 Equality Impact Assessment and Equality Issues:

9.12 The overall impact of the contract was positive and the key performance indicators
available will continue to help sustain this positive impact.

9.13 The contractor will make sure that before any vehicle displaying a disabled badge is
removed that checks are made to check the validity of the disabled badge. Any
vehicle displaying a valid disabled badge (that is not being misused) will not be
removed to the pound but may be relocated.

10. TENDER EVALUATION

10.1 Evaluation

10.2 The open tender process was launched on 6 December 2021 via the ProContract
system. Adverts were placed with the Find A Tender Service, Contracts Finder,
London Tenders Portal (Proactis) and on the Council website.

10.3 During the tender period, a number of clarification questions were received
regarding details of the contract, these were answered accordingly and a
Clarifications Log added to the tender documents pack on ProContract.

Page 19



10.4 Upon closure of the tender, we found that 10 companies had viewed the opportunity
and we had received one bid, from Supplier A.

10.5 We requested feedback from the 9 organisations that did not bid, as to why they did
not submit a tender - the reasons given included not being able to meet the
tendering timescales, lack of an existing car pound, and a need for capital
investment. The detailed responses can be found in Exempt Appendix 1.

10.6 The evaluation team was made up of staff from the Parking Services team including
the Service Area Manager, Parking Taskforce Manager, Project Support Officer and
Parking Enforcement Operations Manager, supported by the Procurement Category
Manager.

10.7 The tender was then scored against the criteria set out below:

Criteria and Sub Criteria Weighting

Quality
Sub Criteria
Service Provision 15%
Capacity to Deliver 10%
Customer Service 10%
Business Innovation 10%
Value for Money 5%
Total 50%
Sustainability
Sub Criteria
Environmental Management 3%
Local Employment and Training Opportunities 2%
Total 5%
Price
Sub Criteria
Removal Operations Costs 30%
Scrapping and Auction Fees 20%
Car Pound Costs 30%
Ad-hoc Additional Removals 10%
Any Other Costs Associated With The Delivery

Of The Service
10%

Total

45%*
(Formula applied to calculate

100% into the 45%
weighting)

Overall Total 100%

Page 20



10.8 Recommendation

10.9 This report recommends that Supplier A is appointed to deliver the Vehicle
Removals and Car Pound Services contract. The bid provided by Supplier A was
compliant, passing the Selection Questionnaire and providing all information
required at ITT stage.

10.10 The evaluation team scored the tender submission in line with the evaluation
criteria awarding the scores set out below. A detailed breakdown of the scores is
provided in Exempt Appendix 2. The bid met the requirements of the specification
and the review of the submitted pricing schedule showed that the tender offers
value for money.

Quality (50%) Sustainability (5%) Price Total

Supplier A 25.44% 2.6% 45% 73.04%

10.11 Supplier A has confirmed that London Living Wage will be paid as a minimum to
all staff employed on the contract, and that no staff delivering this Hackney contract
will be working on a zero hours arrangement.

10.12 TUPE is not applicable to this contract so no staff will be transferred to Supplier A
if the contract award is confirmed.

11. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

11.1 Resources and Project Management (Roles and Responsibilities):

11.2 This Contract creates no staffing or resource implication for the Council. The
Contract will be managed by the Parking Contracts Team from Parking and Market
Services. The Parking Contracts Team has managed the previous Parking
Enforcement Contract. The Service Area Manager (Contracts) has the overall
responsibility for managing the Contract with support from the Parking Contacts
team members.

11.3 Implementation Plan

11.4 The service does not foresee any significant issues regarding the transition to a
new supplier, however the plan is as follows:

Task Date

Award Report considered at
CPIC

7 March 2022

Contract Award Notification 8 March 2022

Page 21



Voluntary Standstill Period 8 March 2022 - Friday 18
March 2022

Contract signed and mobilisation
commences

21 March 2022

Contract commences 1 April 2022

11.5 Key Performance Indicators: The Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are listed in
Appendix 3.

12. COMMENTS OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE
RESOURCES

12.1 The Council has a legal obligation to remove abandoned vehicles from any open-air
land by removing and disposing of the vehicles. The proposals in Section 3 of this
report are to seek authorisation to grant Supplier A the contract for Hackney's
Vehicle Removals and Car Pound service. The contract is for five years, with the
option to extend for another five years at three-year and two-year intervals.

12.2 The Council's decision to bring the Parking Enforcement Contract (PEC) in-house
resulted in this procurement exercise. This service is sub-contracted by the principal
contractor under the existing agreement, which is set to expire on 31 March 2022.
The Council will regain direct management of the contract through this
procurement.

12.3 The Council investigated bringing parking removal services in-house, but due to the
need for specialised equipment (removal trucks and their upkeep) as well as vehicle
disposal facilities (to crash, dismantle, and store vehicles), it is now unable to do so.
When the new contract comes to an end, this will be revisited.

12.4 The cost of the new contract is estimated to be in the region of £550k per year and
this will be covered by existing budgets that are currently used for the Parking
Enforcement Contract.

12.5 The Council currently receives minimum revenue from the processing of abandoned
vehicles; however, under the new contract and in accordance with the new policy,
the Council will begin charging removal costs, storage fees, and issuing Fixed
Penalty Notices (FPN). This is to ensure that the costs of removing abandoned
vehicles are compensated.

12.6 VAT Implications on Land & Property Transactions: Not applicable to this
contract.

13. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE SERVICES

13.1 Paragraph 2.7.7 of Contract Standing Orders states that, in respect of
procurements with a risk assessment of “Medium Risk”, Cabinet Procurement and
Insourcing Committee will determine the award of contracts above the value of

Page 22



£2m. The estimated maximum value of the contract in this Report is above £2m so
therefore the Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee can agree the
recommendation in this report.

13.2 Details of the procurement process undertaken by officers are set out in this Report.
Only one tender was submitted in response to the contract notice published by the
Council but officers are satisfied that the proposed award of the contract is
satisfactory in terms of both price and quality.

14. COMMENTS OF THE PROCUREMENT CATEGORY LEAD

14.1 The contract is valued above the relevant UK Public Procurement threshold
(Services) and an open competitive tender process has been carried out in
accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

14.2 Hackney Contract Standing Order 2.7.7 requires approval from the Cabinet
Procurement and Insourcing Committee to award medium risk contracts valued
above £2M.

14.3 Following Business Case approval Hackney Procurement Board was briefed on the
change of procurement approach from a multi-lot to multi supplier framework single
contract of longer duration. This followed market consultation, and represents a
pragmatic change which simplifies the contractual approach and reduces the
contract management burden in the context of suppliers that are able to offer all
requirements.

14.4 Although the tender response rate was low, there are no concerns with the
recommendation to award the contract to Supplier A as described. The successful
tender offers the best quality and value for money when assessed against the
published criteria.

14.5 Suitable KPIs and contract management arrangements are in place, including
commitments in line with the Council’s Sustainable Procurement Strategy.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Bidder Information - EXEMPT
Appendix 2 - Scoring Breakdown  - EXEMPT
Appendix 3 - Key Performance Indicators - PUBLIC

EXEMPT

By Virtue of Paragraph(s) 3 Part 1 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
appendix 1 and 2 of this report are exempt because they contains Information relating to
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding
the information) and it is considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page 23



None.

Report Author Bayo Teluwo
Taskforce Manager
Tel: 0208 356 8190
bayo.teluwo@hackney.gov.uk

Comments for and on
behalf of the Group
Director of Finance and
Corporate Resources

Nurur Rahman
Service Accountant, Finance & Corporate
Resources
Tel: 0208 356 2018
nurur.rahman@hackney.gov.uk

Comments for and on
behalf of the Director of
Legal and Governance

Patrick Rodger
Senior Lawyer, Legal Services
Tel: 020 8356 6187
patrick.rodger@hackney.gov.uk

Comments of Procurement
Category Lead

Dawn Cafferty
Procurement Category Lead
Tel: 0208 8356 8697
dawn.cafferty@hackney.gov.uk

Page 24

mailto:bayo.teluwo@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:nurur.rahman@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:patrick.rodger@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:dawn.cafferty@hackney.gov.uk


KPI No. KPI Description KPI Measure Service Credit Allowance Service Credit Service Credit Cap
Performance Payment 
Share Fail Example Additional notes

Threshold for 
Service Failure

KPI-1

Deployment - Removal truck and driver deployed in line with the 
deployment schedule agreed for that month (including any additional 
deployment as part of events or special projects) 100%

1 day of driver and/or 
removal truck not being 
deployed per month.

£250 for each day the 
removal truck and/or driver 
are not deployed (unless 
deployment is exempt in line 
with the contract 
specifications).

Maximum of 20% of 
the total performance 

payments value for the 
contract year

20% Driver and truck not deployed due to 
driver not attending to work (and 
replacement not provided for the entire 
day) 60%

KPI-2
Clamping - Clamps removed from the vehicle within 2 hours from 
payment being received. 100%

1 case per month where 
clamp was removed after 2 
hours after payment

£50 per each case where 
clamp was not removed 
within 24 hours

Maximum of 10% of 
the total performance 

payments value for the 
contract year

10%

Clamp not removed within 24 hour period 60%

KPI-3
Removals - Removals completed on time in line with the 
specifications 100%

1 removal not done in line 
with the specifications per 
month

£50 for each failure to 
remove the vehicle on time 
in line with the specifications 
(unless delayed removal 
authorised or exempt in line 
with the specifications)

Maximum of 10% of 
the total performance 

payments value for the 
contract year

10% Vehicle removed more than 1 hour later 
than the agreed time in the service 
specifications.

KPI 3 will not be 
applied on the days 
where KPI 1 is 
failed. 60%

KPI-4
Disposal - All vehicles removed from the pound for auction/scrap in 
line with the service specification 100%

Maximum of 5 working 
days delay of vehicle 
remaining in the car pound 
beyond the agreed service 
specifications

£50 per each day of vehicle 
remaining in the car pound 
beyond the agreed time 
period

Maximum of 10% of 
the total performance 

payments value for the 
contract year

10% Vehicle remaining in the car pound 
beyond the maximum time and taking up 
valuable space for longer than necessary 60%

KPI-5
Photographic evidence - All removals and clamps to have 
photographs taken before and after 100%

1 case of removal/clamp 
per month

£20 per each vehicle with 
missing photos (before 
and/or after)

Maximum of 10% of 
the total performance 

payments value for the 
contract year

5% No photographs taken before and/or 
after removal 60%

KPI-6
Response time - 5 days for general complaints and 3 days for FOIs 
and Members queries 100%

1 fail per month of no more 
than 2 working days

£50 for each complaint 
outside the agreed 
timeframe

Maximum of 10% of 
the total performance 

payments value for the 
contract year

10% Complaint responses received by the 
council after 5 days or after 3 days 60%

KPI-7
Evidence - Documents checked, scanned and indexed onto the 
relevant system in line with the service specifications 100%

2 cases of documents not 
checked or scanned or 
indexed in line with the 
specifications per month.

£10 per each case where 
documents are not scanned 
or indexed in line with the 
service specifications.

Maximum of 10% of 
the total performance 

payments value for the 
contract year

5% Document not scanned or not indxed 
onto the relevant system or case or 
folder. 60%

KPI-8 Complaints - No complaints upheld against the service provider 100%
2 complaints upheld per 
contract year

£100 for each complaint 
upheld against the service 
provider

Maximum of 10% of 
the total performance 

payments value for the 
contract year

10% Driver being abusive towards a member 
of the public 60%

KPI-9
Mystery Shopping - A minimum of 10 mystery shopping and/or 
audit exercises will be carried out per month and passed 100%

1 fail in mystery shopping 
or audit per month

£50 for each failed mystery 
shopping or audit exercise

Maximum of 10% of 
the total performance 

payments value for the 
contract year

10%

Mystery shopping showing a failure of 
staff or processes in breach of the 
service specification or audit exercise 
showing clear breach of the service 
specifications. For example, vehicles not 
logged to the car pound or payments not 
banked on the system. 60%

KPI-10
Performance - All 9 KPIs met to 100% level in each quarter of the 
contract.

100% of all 9 
KPIs 

achieved for 
each month 
in a quarter Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

10%
Any of the 9 KPIs not 100% in any month 
within a quarter. To be paid on quarerly basis.Not applicable

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CONTRACT AWARD REPORT FOR THE SELECTION OF A CONTRACTOR
FOR THE MAIN WORKS FOR MARIAN COURT
Key Decision No. CED S069

CABINET PROCUREMENT
AND INSOURCING
COMMITTEE
MEETING DATE
7 MARCH 2022

CLASSIFICATION:

Open with EXEMPT APPENDIX 1-3

By Virtue of Paragraph(s) 3, Part 1 of
schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972 appendix 1-3 is exempt
because it contains information relating
to the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including the
authority holding the information) and it
is considered that the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the
information.

WARD(S) AFFECTED
Homerton Ward

CABINET MEMBER
Guy Nicholson, Deputy Mayor for Housing Supply, Planning, Culture and
Inclusive Economy

KEY DECISION
Yes
REASON
Spending/or saving

GROUP DIRECTOR

Ajman Ali, Group Director for Neighbourhoods and Housing

1. CABINET MEMBER’S INTRODUCTION

1.1 At its meeting in July 2011 the Council’s Cabinet agreed to the Estate
Regeneration Programme. The Cabinet report outlined the Council’s approach
to the development of a strategy for the delivery of high quality new build
housing and improved living standards across a number of housing estates in
the borough. The Programme was updated and approved by Cabinet in March
2014 and again in October 2015. A further update was more recently provided
and approved by Cabinet in April 2019.

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



1.2 In approving the Programme, the Cabinet also agreed a portfolio as opposed to
a site-by-site approach to the regeneration of its housing estates. This
approach enables the Council to combine the development of schemes which
have potential to generate a surplus with those that require a net investment.
The value created by the outright sale units to be delivered at Marian Court will
help to fund the delivery of new social rented and shared ownership homes on
the Marian Court site.

1.3 Cabinet considered and approved the procurement strategy for Marian Court in
November 2017. The project constitutes the final phase of the Bridge House
and Marian Court estate regeneration. Through our self-funded, self-delivery
model we have already built 115 high quality homes for social rent, shared
ownership and Hackney Living Rent in the first two phases - with the second
phase at Bridge House successfully completed in 2020.

1.4 Across all our new developments we are committed to maximising the number
of genuinely affordable council homes. Marian Court comprises 160 new
homes, including 32 much needed homes for social rent, 59 for shared
ownership and 69 for outright sale. The Council’s Estate Regeneration team is
taking forward the delivery of Marian Court, and the completed scheme will be
managed in-house by Housing Services.

2. GROUP DIRECTOR’S INTRODUCTION

2.1 On 18 January 2021 Cabinet Procurement Committee (CPC), now known as
the Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee (CPIC), agreed to grant
delegated authority to the Group Director, Chief Executive’s Directorate to enter
into a JCT Design and Build contract for Marian Court with bidder C. One of
the conditions of this delegation was that vacant possession of the site was
achieved.

2.2 At the time of writing, one resident still remains at Marian Court. While they
have accepted the tenancy of an alternative property, they have not yet moved,
and there is a risk that if vacant possession is not gained in March, we will be
unable to enter contract with the successful bidder under the delegated
authority approved in January 2021, and the contractor will further raise their
tender price or withdraw from the project after 31 March 2022.

2.3 To secure the current tender price and to protect the Council from further
abortive costs, this report seeks authority to enter into contract with the
preferred contractor to undertake the main works for the development, as set
out in Exempt Appendix 3.

2.4 In line with the provisions of the Contract Standing Orders, the award of
contract is presented to the Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee

Page 28



for consideration and approval. The recommendation is made on the basis of
both cost and quality.

3. RECOMMENDATION(S)

Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee is recommended to:

3.1 Award the contract for the main works package for Marian Court Phase 3
& 4 to Bidder C, for the value set out in Exempt Appendix 3.

3.2 Enter into a JCT Design and Build contract 2016 and any other ancillary
legal documentation necessary relating thereto with Bidder C for the
main works at Marian Court under such terms as shall be agreed by the
Director of Legal and Governance Services, and authorise the Director of
Legal and Governance Services to prepare, agree, settle and sign the
necessary legal documentation to effect the proposals contained in this
report and set out in Exempt Appendix 3.

4. RELATED DECISIONS

4.1 At its meeting in July 2011 the Council’s Cabinet agreed the Estate
Regeneration Strategy 2011-2019. The Cabinet report outlined the Council’s
approach to the development of a strategy for the delivery of high quality new
build housing and improved living standards across a number of housing
estates in the borough.

4.2 The Programme was updated and approved by Cabinet in March 2014 and
again in October 2015 and April 2019.

4.3 Outline planning permission (ref.2012/1731) was granted for the whole of the
Bridge House and Marian Court Estate on 7 November 2012.

4.4 At its meeting on 18 July 2016 the Council’s Cabinet agreed to the Sales and
Marketing Framework, authorising the Director of Regeneration to implement
the Sales and Marketing Framework in relation to shared ownership and
outright sale disposals for both the Estate Regeneration and Housing Supply
Programmes, and authorising the Director of Strategic Property and the
Director of Regeneration to dispose of leasehold and freehold interests in the
shared ownership and outright sale homes developed or to be developed as
part of those Programmes.

4.5 The Council’s Cabinet Procurement Committee (CPC) approved the business
case for the selection of a contractor for the construction of mixed tenure
housing at Marian Court on 6 November 2017, that is, to undertake
procurement for this works contract via the OJEU process.

Page 29



4.6 On 28 November 2019 the Hackney Procurement Board (HPB) approved the
Business Case and commencement of the procurement process for the
demolition of three existing blocks at Marian Court.

4.7 A demolition contract was awarded by HPB on 9 June 2020 and demolition
works at Marian Court are now underway.

4.8 A detailed planning application for the Marian Court site was submitted on 10
January 2018. This application sought to increase the amount of housing to be
delivered in comparison to the masterplan and the Overarching Estate
Regeneration Programme Unilateral Undertaking (UU) agreed by the Planning
Sub-Committee in April 2014, seeking permission for 160 new homes. This
represents an increase of 41 homes, including 16 additional social rent homes,
8 shared ownership homes, and 17 outright sale homes.

4.9 Planning Sub-Committee resolved to grant planning permission for the
proposed Marian Court scheme on 6 June 2018. The proposal was
subsequently referred to the GLA for review, and written approval was received
on 6 July 2020. The Planning Decision Notice was issued on 22 July 2020.

4.10 Approval to appropriate the land at Marian Court for planning purposes will be
sought from Cabinet upon completion of the demolition works.

5. REASONS FOR DECISION/OPTIONS APPRAISAL

5.1 This report outlines the process that has been followed in selecting a preferred
contractor for the main works for Marian Court.

5.2 The redevelopment of Marian Court represents an opportunity to deliver
increased numbers of residential units in order to maximise the use of the land
and to enable the renewal of an existing housing estate which has
deteriorated, is costly to run due to energy inefficiencies, and would be
prohibitively expensive to bring up to the Decent Homes Standard. It will also
re-configure and provide improved amenity space, public realm and new
community and commercial space.

5.3 The main works contract for Marian Court requires the successful contractor to
deliver:

● 32 social rented homes;
● 59 shared ownership homes;
● 69 outright sale homes;
● a new community facility;
● 1,017 sqm of commercial space including retail and workspace; and
● associated public realm and landscape works including improved facilities for

play and recreation.

Page 30



5.4 Most of the homes at Marian Court have been successfully decanted, with one
remaining resident still to move. Alternative accommodation has been agreed
with the resident and the tenancy documents have now been signed.

5.5 A demolition contract for Marian Court was awarded by the Hackney
Procurement Board in June 2020, and the two vacant buildings have now been
demolished.

5.6 The Council will act as developer for the outright sale and shared ownership
homes, marketing and disposing of them in line with the Council’s approved
Sales and Marketing Framework.

5.7 With 69 outright sale properties and 59 shared ownership properties at Marian
Court, the expected sales income for Marian Court poses a financial risk to the
scheme, programme, and Housing Revenue Account (HRA), associated with
an unexpected and sustained downturn of the market.

5.8 To minimise the sales risk associated with the simultaneous release of a large
number of homes for outright sale, it is intended to phase the release of these
units subject to the confirmed construction programme.

5.9 A market review and marketing strategy will be produced for each sales phase,
with authority to proceed to market properties delegated to the Group Director,
Chief Executive’s directorate and Group Director of Finance and Corporate
Resources.

5.10 Should sales not achieve the forecast values, or reservations be slower than
expected, alternative strategies (as set out in the Risk Section below and not
included in the Council’s Sales and Marketing Framework) will need to be
considered to maintain the viability of the scheme, the wider Estate
Regeneration Programme and HRA, some of which may require Cabinet
approval.

5.11 A pre-tender cost plan was prepared for the Council by its external Quantity
Surveyor (QS), setting out the estimated costs of construction, based on the
pre-tender stage estimate and designs developed to RIBA Stage 3+. The
pre-tender costs pertaining to the works are set out in Exempt Appendix 1.

5.12 It is proposed that the Council will enter into a JCT Design and Build Standard
Form of Contract 2016 with the preferred bidder, with Hackney Council
amendments.

6. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS (CONSIDERED AND REJECTED)

6.1 At the Cabinet meeting in July 2011, and subsequently in March 2014, October

Page 31



2015 and April 2019, the Council agreed an extensive programme of
redevelopment and regeneration across a number of its estates.

6.2 The approved approach provides the opportunity to combine development of
schemes which have the potential to generate a surplus with those that require
a net investment. Based on current assumptions regarding values and costs,
this approach allows the Estate Regeneration Programme to be self-funding.

6.3 The Council owns and manages thousands of homes in the borough, and as
such, has an in-depth understanding of, and expertise in the affordable housing
sector. In addition, the Council’s Regeneration function has already
successfully delivered new build housing across a number of sites.
Accordingly, the Council’s recent approach to regeneration seeks to utilise its
expertise, understanding and financial capacity to build and retain new
affordable housing and outright sale homes directly through its in-house Sales
and Marketing Team.

6.4 The option to ‘do nothing’ i.e. not to award the main works contract for Marian
Court was considered and rejected. The Marian Court project forms a crucial
part of the Marian Court and Bridge House estate regeneration scheme in
Homerton, and must therefore be completed.

6.5 This final phase of the regeneration will not only provide new and genuinely
affordable housing and help alleviate the shortage of housing in the borough,
but will also deliver a large amount of workspace, retail space and a new
community facility. In addition, the proposed scheme will landscape and
remodel the terrain of the site, creating new, attractive and accessible
pedestrian and cycle routes from Link Street and Homerton High Street to
Ponsford Street. New active frontages to ground floor commercial spaces
along Homerton High Street and Ponsford Street will substantially improve the
pedestrian experience along those busy roads.

6.6 Procuring a contractor/developer and contracting with them through the
Council’s hybrid Development Agreement was initially considered as an option
for the delivery of this scheme.

6.7 The Development Agreement approach has been used for schemes of this
size in the past, as the Council was building up its in-house capacity and
expertise. It was also favoured as it reduced the risk of financial exposure with
regards to the sale of homes on the open market, placing this instead with the
contractor/developer partner.

6.8 However, tenders received using the Development Agreement approach on
other regeneration schemes highlighted that developers are not factoring in
future price increases to their bids, or are pricing excessively for potential sales
risk. It was therefore not deemed beneficial from a financial perspective to use

Page 32



a Development Agreement for this scheme.

6.9 Procuring through a Framework was considered. However, this was rejected
due to concern about narrowing the market. The decision was taken to use the
EU restricted procurement route in order to give the widest range of suitable
contractors the opportunity to tender, and also provide a framework in which
best value can be obtained in terms of both price and quality. An open (single
stage) tender process was also rejected, as it was felt that the burden placed
on bidders via this route would limit the response.

6.10 A competitive procedure with negotiation as provided for in the Regulations
was initially rejected, as more preparatory work and additional market testing
would have been required, delaying the start of the procurement. However, as
intended and set out in the business case agreed by CPC in 2017, following
receipt of tender returns which significantly exceeded cost estimates, the
Council initiated a negotiated process with all participating contractors to
explore the potential of cost savings ahead of a re-tender. The negotiation was
concluded with a re-tender of the scheme in July 2020, inviting bidders to
submit their Best and Final Offer (BAFO) tenders for the delivery of the main
works at Marian Court.

6.11 The procurement strategy agreed by CPC in November 2017 had intended to
procure demolition and construction for Marian Court under a single contract.
However, due to delays in the procurement process and in achieving vacant
possession and planning consent, the decision to procure the demolition for the
scheme separately and thereby minimise project delays was taken, and a
contract was awarded to a specialist demolition contractor by the Hackney
Procurement Board in June 2020.

This approach has:

● allowed for necessary site investigations and surveys to take place early, to
ensure swift design and construction progress when the main works
commence;

● de-risked the project through establishing the extent of underground
contamination and removing any obstructions identified; and

● provided greater certainty with regards to both cost and programme, thereby
reducing main contractor on-costs and risk allowances.

7. PROJECT PROGRESS

7.1 Developments since the Business Case approval

Decant and leasehold buybacks

7.1.1 The decant process for all secure tenants at Marian Court was completed in

Page 33



May 2019, and leasehold property buybacks under the Compulsory
Purchase Orders made for Marian Court were concluded in February 2020.
One household in temporary accommodation is currently still living at Marian
Court. They have entered into a tenancy agreement for an alternative
property, and officers are working to support the household to move at the
earliest opportunity. However, in order to mitigate against any further delay to
the project, it is recommended to now award the main works contract as set
out at Exempt Appendix 3.

Procurement strategy and process

7.1.2 At its meeting in November 2017, CPC approved the procurement strategy for
Marian Court, which proposed the selection of a contractor to be carried out via
the publication of an Official Journal of the European Union Notice through the
Restricted Procedure in accordance with the EU Directive and EU Treaty and
the Public Contracts Regulations. It was intended to procure a single contractor
to deliver the demolition and construction of the new development.

7.1.3 In April 2018 the procurement process commenced with the issue of a
pre-qualification questionnaire and the draft tender documents for the works
contract, inviting contractors to submit an expression of interest. Nine
responses were received and assessed, and the five highest scoring bidders
were shortlisted and invited to participate in the tender.

7.1.4 The Invitation to Tender (ITT) was published on 17 July 2018, with tenders due
to be submitted by 7 November 2018. Two bidders withdrew during the tender
period and three tenders were received.

7.1.5 All three offers exceeded the pre-tender estimate by approximately 20% and
included significant risk allowances or provisional prices for unknown ground
conditions. On evaluation, it was concluded that none of the three tenders
complied with the Council’s financial criteria set out for the contract - an all
inclusive fixed price within the cost estimate.

7.1.6 As a consequence and in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015, the Council moved to initiate a Negotiated Procedure Without Prior
Publication, a negotiation with all contractors that had participated in the tender
process, to explore the potential for cost savings through design or specification
changes prior to a re-tender of the scheme to the original bidders.

7.1.7 Negotiations commenced on 20 March 2019 and the Negotiated Procedure
was concluded on 27 July 2020, when participating bidders were invited to
submit their Best and Final Offer (BAFO) tenders based on a revised ITT,
including specification changes agreed during the negotiation period.

7.1.8 As a result of the delay in achieving vacant possession, and not completing the

Page 34



demolition of Marian Court, the tender period to award the contract could not
be met by the extended expiry date of 26 October 2021. Tenderers were
therefore asked to further extend their Tenders to 31 January and again to 31
March 2022. Only two responses were received, from Bidders A and C. No
Form of Tender was submitted; nor response received from Bidder B.

7.1.9 Tables 1, 2 and 3 below illustrate the change in price scores, and the impact on
the overall scores, as a result of the delay to awarding the contract and the
need to extend the form of tender period. These prices are valid until 31
March, 2022.

7.1.10 The outcome of this process was that Bidder C remains the highest scoring
tenderer based on their combined quality and cost score, consistent with the
initial evaluation which informed the recommendation to CPC in January 2021.

Table 1: Summary of tender evaluations from BAFO submissions (as at
January 2021 and valid to April 2021) as at Exempt Appendix 1

Bidder A B C

Cost (70%) 69.75% 59.66% 70.00%

Quality (30%) 20.80% 17.80% 25.10%

Total 90.55% 77.46% 95.10%

Position 2 3 1

Table 2: Summary of tender evaluation from April 2021 submissions (valid to
October 2021) as at Exempt Appendix 2

Bidder A B C

Cost (70%) 70.00% 65.32% 68.05%

Quality (30%) 20.80% 17.80% 25.10%

Total 90.80% 83.12% 95.15%

Position 2 3 1

Page 35



Table 3: Revised scores, as at January 2022 (valid to March 31, 2022) as set
out in Exempt Appendix 3

Bidder A B C

Cost (70%) 70.00% 68.61 % 69.53 %

Quality (30%) 20.80% 20.80% 25.10%

Total 90.80% 86.71% 94.63%

Position 2 3 1

7.1.11 Due to the extended procurement timescale for Marian Court and
complexities associated with achieving vacant possession and securing
planning consent, it was decided to tender the demolition works to a specialist
contractor separately, rather than including these within the main works
contract, as originally intended. This approach has allowed the demolition
works to be delivered in parallel to the conclusion of the main works tender
process, thereby minimising programme delays and reducing risks associated
with the main works contract.

7.1.12 On 28 November 2019 the demolition business case was agreed by the
Hackney Procurement Board, and the demolition contract was awarded on 8
June 2020. Demolition started on 01 September 2020 with an expected
completion date of 28 February 2021. Demolition of the final block is on hold
awaiting vacant possession.

Scheme Design Changes

7.1.13 A number of design and specification changes were included within the BAFO
ITT to future proof designs ahead of imminent changes to building regulations
Part B and Part L, and facilitate cost savings identified during the negotiations
with bidders. These are summarised below:

● Value Engineering

A number of specification changes identified during the Negotiated Procedure aimed
at reducing project build cost were included within the BAFO ITT.

● Energy strategy

The scheme, as tendered in 2018, proposed the residential heating and hot water to
be provided through a Combined Heat and Power unit (CHP) with backup boilers.
Since that time a number of policy changes have occurred, and changes to Building

Page 36



Regulations are expected imminently, resulting in changes to sustainability targets
and technology. It was concluded that alternative (non fossil fuel based) heating
strategies would need to be explored. Following an options appraisal, an amended
specification for a more sustainable energy strategy using communal air source heat
pumps was included within the BAFO ITT.

● Sprinklers

The scheme, as tendered in 2018, included sprinklers in those parts of the proposal
with floor levels above 18 metres. As part of the BAFO ITT, bidders have been
requested to include sprinklers to all blocks with a top floor height of more than 11
metres in line with forthcoming changes to Building Regulations.

7.1.14 In addition to the above measures included within the BAFO tender, the option
to undertake a significant re-design for further elements of the project and seek
planning consent for an amended scheme ahead of a re-tender was
considered. However, following an impact and benefit analysis of this proposal,
taking into consideration additional fees, expected savings, risks and
associated programme delays, it was concluded that the benefits of proceeding
with the project without these design changes outweighed those achievable
through a re-design. The re-design option was therefore rejected.

Other changes included in BAFO ITT

7.1.15 Due to the extended procurement timeline, the BAFO ITT was also
amended to incorporate changes to the Council’s templates, contracts and
processes, for example the handover requirements for regeneration projects.

7.1.16 The Form of Contract will now be the JCT Design & Build 2016 with
bespoke LBH amendments, as opposed to the 2011 version of the contract
as  previously tendered.

Planning consent and amendments

7.1.17 Planning Sub-Committee resolved to grant planning permission for the Marian
Court scheme on 6 June 2018. The proposal was subsequently referred to the
GLA for review and written approval was received on 6 July 2020. Following
this, the Planning Decision Notice was issued on 22 July 2020.

7.1.18 Once a contractor has been appointed and the specified energy strategy has
been designed to the required level of detail, amendments to the MarianCourt
planning consent will be sought for additional plant enclosures at rooftop level
and the new strategy’s performance and carbon emission reduction achieved.

7.1.19 The discharge of pre-commencement planning conditions, which is required
ahead of the start of the structural demolition process, has been delayed due to

Page 37



the recent cyberattack on the Council.

Sales and Marketing

7.1.20 Due to current market conditions, sales value increases are not assumed
within the current financial appraisal. However, there is potential for the market
to strengthen before outright sale homes at Marian Court are released, which
could reduce the current projected deficit.

Stakeholder Consultation

7.1.21 New and returning residents of Bridge House and Marian Court have been
updated on the regeneration projects regularly via newsletters, the last of which
was distributed in January 2022. In addition, the demolition contractor for
Marian Court has issued regular newsletters to nearby residents to update on
their progress.

7.1.22 A resident representative from the original Bridge House and Marian Court
Steering Group participated with officers in the tender evaluation process for
both the initial tender in 2018 and the recent BAFO tender.

Project Risks

7.1.23 Key risks associated with the award of the main works contract for the project
are outlined below.

Risk Likeli
hood

Im
pact

Over
all

Action(s) to avoid or mitigate risk

L – Low;
M – Medium;
H - High

Financial / Programme:
Contractor going into
liquidation during
construction

L H M Initial finance checks on all participating bidders have
been carried out as part of the tender process.
Requirements for Performance Bond and Parent
Company Guarantees have been included within the
contract particulars.

Since the start of the Covid-19 outbreak, the
Procurement team has set up new procedures to
monitor suppliers’ financial viability, and Business
Continuity Planning information is being requested
from all suppliers. A contract with the recommended
bidder will only be entered into if the Procurement team
is satisfied that it has a robust Business Continuity
Plan.

Page 38



Financial /
Programme: Brexit
leading to increased
project costs and delay
due to labour and
material shortages

M H H A fixed price (exemption: provisional sum for
connections and diversions) for most elements of the
tender has been secured. A very detailed programme
has been provided by the preferred bidder.

Programme:
Covid-19 leading to
programme delays

L M M Construction sites were not required to stop
operations during the lockdowns in 2020 or 2021.
Tenderers have been required to consider current
guidance on socially distanced site operations as part
of their construction programmes. The preferred
bidder’s programme is very detailed, and current
Covid guidelines have also been considered for the
contractor’s site set-up as part of their quality
response.

Financial:
Projected market values
are not achieved due to a
downward movement in
the overall or local
housing market

M M M Sales valuations, provided by an independent
surveyor and used for the financial appraisal, have
been reviewed and endorsed by the Council’s Sales
and Marketing team.

Value increases are not assumed within the current
financial appraisal, but due to the expected length of
the construction programme there is potential for the
market to strengthen before outright sale homes at
Marian Court are released, which could reduce the
current projected deficit.

The scheme’s 69 outright sale properties are valued
at £44m, exposing the scheme, programme and
HRA to financial risk. In addition, the 59 shared
ownership properties are currently valued at £34m,
with forecast first tranche equity sales of £8.5m.

To spread this sales risk it is intended to phase
the release of the outright sale units.

A market review and marketing strategy will be
produced for each sales phase, with authority to
proceed to market properties delegated to the
Group Director, Chief Executive’s directorate and
Group Director of Finance and Corporate
Resources.

If, due to market conditions, the Council is unable to
sell all of the outright sale homes to individual
purchasers in line with the Sales & Marketing

Page 39



Strategy, there are a number of options that could be
explored to minimize the financial impact:

● Convert some of the outright sale homes to
shared ownership (subject to demand)

● Convert some of the outright sale homes to
social rent (on an interim or longer term basis).

● Sell some units to an individual investor or
private rented sector operator.

Financial / Reputational:
Quality of scheme does
not meet expectations
resulting in reputational
damage or increased cost
to the Council

L H M Detailed tender documentation has been provided
to bidders, to ensure that the proposals are
delivered as designed and specified.

The preferred bidder has confirmed they will retain
the Council’s pre-contract design team. This team
has produced a high quality design proposal and
understands the Council’s vision for the project. Their
retention will ensure continuity of project knowledge
and help to ensure the quality of the design is carried
through into delivery.

During the delivery stage, the Council’s Employer’s
Agent team, including Site Inspectors and Clerk of
Works will carry out regular site inspections to
ensure work is completed in line with the tender
specification documents. Due to the planned change
of energy strategy, the appointment of a specialist
Clerk of Works is intended to safeguard the correct
delivery of the revised M&E designs to the Council’s
specification.

Stringent KPIs, monitoring the quality of delivery,
have been included within the contract (see 9.2).

Financial / Programme:
Delays to the demolition
process lead to delays in
the agreed start date for
the main works contract

L M L Tenders were received on 26 November 2020 and
bidders are required to retain prices for a minimum
of six months, they have subsequently been asked
to extend the tender window several times as a
result of not being able to gain vacant possession
of the site, (and thereby complete the demolition
and satisfy the conditional approval set out in the
report to CPC in January 2021).

Considering recent delays, and complexities in the
sequencing of this work, it is intended to award the
main works contract as soon as possible, as the
structural demolition of Marian Court is underway and

Page 40



largely completed. Further delay to awarding the
main contract will result in further costs to the project.

The approach outlined in this report is intended to
limit the risk of delays to a start on site required to be
agreed as part of the main works contract, and also
enables a seamless handover of site management
responsibilities between demolition and main works
contractor.

Reputational /
Financial: Unable to
meet the
commitment to the GLA
for a start on site during
2021/2022 due to delays
in awarding the contract
for the main works,
resulting in reputational
damage and potentially
loss of grant funding

H M H It is intended to award the contract to the preferred
bidder as soon as possible. Officers are keeping the
GLA informed with regard to the start on site date in
relation to the GLA’s Building Council Homes for
Londoners programme.

Financial / Programme:
Planning consent for the
energy strategy
amendments is delayed,
leading to programme
delays and additional
project cost

M M M In accordance with advice from the project EA, to
avoid high risk allowances as part of the tender bids
and delays to the tender programme, the Council has
retained this risk.

Initial engagement with the local planning authority
is intended to be sought ahead of the full design of
the strategy, to limit delays and risk, followed by an
amendment application once the design has been
completed.

A planning consultant is being commissioned to
lead the Council’s liaison with the local planning
authority.

Programme /
Financial: Site
connections/
diversions are more
complex and costly than
anticipated, resulting in a
contract variation and
programme delays

M M M Utility consultations were carried out for the initial
tender, providing quotes to bidders.

Ahead of the BAFO tender a utility consultant was
commissioned by the Council to re-consult with all
key utility providers. Their findings have formed the
basis for the provisional sums included within the
contract sum analysis. These costs are confirmed in
the revised tender returns February 2022 from both
bidders.

Necessary consultation with utility providers during

Page 41



the design development phase (re-design energy
strategy) has been considered within the preferred
bidder’s delivery programme.

Programme/
Financial: Complex site
or construction issues
lead to increased cost
and project delays

L M M Detailed tender documentation including extensive
survey and site investigation information has been
provided to bidders.

A fixed price (exemption:provisional sum for
connections and diversions) for most elements of
the tender has been secured.

The recommended bidder has demonstrated a
thorough understanding of project risks,
complexities and constraints as part of their
tender submission, and in particular their risk
assessment and programme.

7.2 Whole Life Costing/Budgets:

7.2.1 The cost of the Marian Court scheme will be funded from sales receipts of the
outright sale properties, the first tranche equity sales of the shared ownership
properties, and the future rental income from the social rented, shared
ownership and commercial properties, together with subsidy via GLA grant. In
line with the Estate Regeneration Programme’s portfolio approach, the
scheme’s deficit will be funded from the surpluses generated by other schemes
within the Programme.

7.2.2 Following the termination of the initial tender process and ahead of the issue of
the BAFO Invitation to Tender, a revised pre-tender cost plan was prepared.
The proposed works and contract sum remain within the revised cost estimate.

8 SAVINGS

8.1 Marian Court Phase 3 & 4 will deliver new, high quality, mixed tenure homes
and contribute to the regeneration of the Borough. This will provide better value
for money for Hackney residents, and provide the basis for the Council to
continue delivering a high quality and cost-effective housing management
service.

8.2 The new homes at Marian Court Phase 3 & 4 will also contribute to alleviating
the current pressure on the Council’s housing register and temporary
accommodation costs, as 32 homes for social rent will be delivered.

9. SUSTAINABILITY ISSUES

Page 42



9.1 Procuring Green

9.1.1 The Marian Court scheme will provide high quality housing, workspace, retail
and community space, as well as new and improved landscaping and public
realm, enhancing the ecological value and biodiversity of the site. The scheme
also aligns with Hackney’s Transport Strategy and TfL’s Healthy Streets
Indicators, aiming to prioritise walking and cycling, providing safe environments
with opportunities for play, shade and shelter, and opportunities to rest in a
clean environment.

9.1.2 The development will be car-free with substantial provision of cycle parking, a
car club space and electric vehicle charging points. In addition, the project will
be delivering new and upgraded, attractive pedestrian and cycle routes across
the site.

9.1.3 The scheme will deliver homes which meet current regulatory requirements
relating to sustainability, including Building Regulations and the London Mayor’s
Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance.

9.1.4 During the demolition and enabling works, the soil on the site will be tested for
contamination and remediated appropriately.

9.1.5 The recycling of construction waste and the development of a Site Waste
Management Plan are mandatory. The contractor will be obligated to minimise
construction related disruption, for example dust nuisance, to residents and
neighbouring buildings.

9.1.6 The energy strategy for the Marian Court scheme has recently been revised in
order to move away from the originally proposed fossil fuel powered Combined
Heat and Power (CHP) plant. Hot water and heating at Marian Court are now
intended to be generated by more sustainable communal air source heat
pumps, located at roof level of the new buildings.

9.2 Procuring for a Better Society

9.2.1 The appointed contractor will be required to provide local training and
employment opportunities, for which a number of Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) have been established. KPIs will be monitored regularly at site meetings.
The contractor and Employer’s Agent (EA) will provide information that will form
the basis of each score, which will be documented at each meeting. The
contractor will undertake to use reasonable endeavours to source materials
from local suppliers and manufacturers, and has been encouraged to use small
and medium sized businesses in its supply chain.

9.2.2 The appointed main works contractor will provide a draft Employment and

Page 43



Skills Plan to the Council for approval prior to works commencing on site. They
will also prepare and implement an active programme for recruitment in order
to achieve a local labour target of 30%. Under the terms of the tender process
the contractor must employ at least one apprentice per £2m of construction
contract value, which reflects the Unilateral Undertaking requirement.

9.2.3 The Council’s Sustainable Procurement Strategy (SPS), adopted in November
2018 and after the tender process for Marian Court had commenced, sets out a
target of one apprentice per £1m of contract value for services delivered to the
Council. While the evaluation criteria for the BAFO ITT had to remain
consistent with the original ITT, and could not be adapted to the newly set
target, the potential to satisfy the latter was tested with bidders through a
clarification question. However, bidders considered the target to be either
challenging or unsustainable for the successful delivery of this project due to:

● a high proportion of the overall construction being manufactured off site
(precast concrete cladding, balconies, stairs, windows, lifts etc.);

● a proportion of temporary access works (hoisting/craneage) not providing
opportunity for apprenticeships.

9.2.4 Bidders also highlighted the impact of COVID-19 guidance on site operations,
limiting the number of staff on site and thereby putting the SPS target further
out of reach.

9.2.5 Based on advice received from the project Employer's Agent (EA), the element
of labour for a residential/mixed use construction contract forms around 30% of
the contract sum, with the remainder covering the cost of construction materials
and equipment, as well as overheads and profit. In view of this, the main works
contractor’s commitment to employ one apprentice per £2m of contract value,
meets and exceeds the SPS target of one apprentice per £1m of services
delivered to the Council.

9.2.6 The appointed contractor will be required to provide the Council with a local
labour return for the scheme every three months during the construction phase;
and must notify the Council of all vacancies for employees, self-employed,
sub-contractors and any other form or type of employment or service arising
from construction of the development to our Hackney Works team. The Council
will endeavour to find suitable candidates to put forward for the roles within five
working days unless otherwise agreed in advance. After such time vacancies
can be filled through alternative channels.

9.2.7 The preferred bidder has committed to paying all of its staff and sub-contractors
the London Living Wage, for the term of the contract.

9.2.8 As part of the Marian Court Unilateral Undertaking; a sum of £88,861 will be
paid as a planning obligation to Hackney Works as a contribution towards the

Page 44



cost of training and supporting out of work residents into jobs during the
construction/demolition phase of the development; and a sum of £44,295 will
be paid as a contribution towards end use jobs provided through the operation
of the commercial floorspace.

9.2.9 Secured through a planning condition, a minimum of 10% of the overall
workspace delivered at Marian Court will be rented to occupiers at affordable
rates.

9.3 Procuring Fair Delivery

9.3.1 Tender documents issued to each bidder were identical, giving them equal
opportunity to review and respond. Throughout the tender process bidders
submitted clarification questions. Where a clarification was not commercially
sensitive, the clarification and the Council’s response was anonymised and
issued to all bidders.

9.3.2 Each bidder was asked to comply with the Council’s requirements with regards
to the specification, local labour, employment and skills, and Fair Payment
Charter. The successful bidder has agreed to the Council’s targets in these
areas, including payment of the London Living Wage to all employees - a
commitment also extended to their sub-contractor supply chain - and
cooperation with Hackney Works to promote diversity in their workforce.

9.3.3 The preferred bidder has also committed to ensuring stringent health and
safety protocols on site and socially distanced site operations in particular, and
provided detailed floor plans of a proposed, socially distanced welfare set-up.

9.3.4 KPIs have been agreed with the contractor and will be scored at agreed
intervals during the construction period. More information on KPIs can be found
in section 9.2 below.

9.4 Equality Impact Assessment and Equality Issues:

9.4.1 The shortage of affordable housing is a significant issue within Hackney, with
3,000 households living in temporary accommodation and nearly 13,000 on the
housing waiting list. Marian Court will provide more than 50% affordable
housing - made up of 32 social rented and 59 shared ownership homes - and
will therefore contribute towards meeting some of this housing need.

9.4.2 The Estate Regeneration Programme proposes to build new mixed
communities that are better integrated with their surrounding areas and have
well designed homes, improved community facilities, and safer, more attractive
environments; enhancing the quality of life of many residents, which supports
the borough in meeting its Public Sector Equality Duty.

Page 45



9.4.3 The Council is committed to building new homes that are adaptable to the
varying needs of occupiers over time and that will enable people to live
independently in their homes for longer. Within the new development, 32 larger
homes (3 or more bedrooms) to be delivered at Marian Court will provide family
accommodation, and 16 of the new homes will conform to the M4(3) standards
for wheelchair user dwellings.

9.4.4 All of the shared ownership and outright sale homes will be marketed in line
with Hackney’s Sales and Marketing Strategy, which gives priority to those who
live and/or work in the borough. The minimum share percentage for shared
ownership homes has been reviewed and approved by Cabinet to maximise
affordability.

10. PROCUREMENT PROCESS & EVALUATION

10.1 Initial Tender Process (2018)

10.1.1 The procurement route initially undertaken for the Marian Court main works
contract was via an OJEU Restricted Procedure tender process. This
comprised:

(i) Selection Questionnaire
(ii) Invitation to Tender

10.1.2 The Evaluation Panel for the tender process comprised:

● Project Manager Regeneration (LBH)
● Strategic Design Manager (LBH)
● Employer’s Agent (EA) and Principal Designer (acting on behalf of the Council)
● Quantity Surveyor/Cost Consultant
● Resident Representative (for selected quality criterion)

10.1.3 The procurement process was managed and coordinated by members of the
Procurement team.

(i) Selection Questionnaire (SQ)

10.1.4 The SQ was published on the Council’s e-tendering portal, Pro-Contract on 19
April 2018, inviting interested contractors to express an interest in tendering for
the Marian Court works contract, by responding to the SQ.

10.1.5 Nine responses were received and evaluated.

10.1.6 All submissions provided responses to the Pass/Fail sections, and the
project/qualitative specific questions appropriately. Their responses were
evaluated on the following criteria:

Page 46



● The contractor’s eligibility to bid;
● Financial and economic capacity to undertake the contract;
● Experience in the delivery of high quality residential developments including

high quality landscape and public realm;
● Experience of working with key stakeholders and existing communities in urban

and constrained environments;
● Their track record of good construction practices; and
● Their track record of client and customer satisfaction including defects

management.

10.1.7 On the conclusion of the evaluation of the SQ submissions, the five highest
scoring bidders were shortlisted and invited to participate in the tender.

(ii) Invitation to Tender

10.1.8 The Invitation to Tender (ITT) documents were published on the e-tendering
portal, Pro-Contract on 17 July 2018. Contractors were required to submit bids
by 7 November 2018.

10.1.9 Three out of the five contractors shortlisted submitted tender responses.

10.1.10 As previously agreed by CPC, the tenders were evaluated on the basis of
30% for quality and 70% for price.

Tender Evaluation

10.1.11 Following submission of their bids, clarifications on the submissions were
raised with bidders via Pro-Contract, by the EA and Quantity Surveyor, to clarify
any errors in the tenders submitted or any apparent inconsistencies prior to the
evaluation process.

Quality Evaluation - 30%

10.1.12 For the Quality element, bidders were required to set out eight Method
Statements addressing the following quality criteria:

● Programme;
● Project delivery;
● Project risks;
● Site logistics;
● Design integrity and design team;
● Community engagement;
● Local employment, training, and supply chain; and
● Commitment to paying the London Living Wage (pass/fail criterion).

Page 47



10.1.13 The evaluators also undertook site visits to two completed projects put
forward by each bidder.

10.1.14 The quality evaluation did not progress further as the commercial tender
report had concluded that none of the bids was compliant in terms of financial
viability.

Price Evaluation - 70%

10.1.15 Tender prices were scored using the published pricing evaluation
methodology; whereby the lowest priced bid achieves the highest score of
70%, with all the other prices scored relative to the highest scored price.

10.1.16 The prices were also assessed against the pre-tender estimates that had
been prepared by the project QS.

10.1.17 All of the tenders received exceeded the pre-tender cost plan by
approximately 20% and were thereby not compliant with the ITT on the basis
of financial viability and project budget.

10.1.18 In addition, two out of the three bids received included provisional
allowances related to ground conditions, utility connections and diversions, and
did not comply with the requirement for an all inclusive fixed price for the
delivery of the scheme.

10.1.19 On conclusion of the price evaluation, on 20 March 2019 the Council
informed bidders of its intention to abandon the procurement process (in
accordance with regulation 55 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015), and
(in accordance with Regulation 32(2)(a) of the Public Contracts Regulations
2015) to commence a Negotiated Procedure Without Prior Publication, allowing
the Council to negotiate with contractors who had submitted a tender.

10.2 Negotiated Procedure

10.2.1 All three contractors confirmed their interest to participate in a negotiation, and
on 21 March 2019 the Council wrote to the bidders informing them of the next
steps in the negotiation, as well as the main issues and project areas for
discussion and review.

Negotiation

10.2.2 Contractors submitted revised proposals on 4 April 2019, followed by a first
round of individual negotiation meetings on 8 and 9 April.

10.2.3 Following review of the proposals, the Council wrote to the bidders on 17 April
informing them of which value engineering options were acceptable, and

Page 48



inviting them to prepare revised proposals.

10.2.4 All three participating bidders issued revised proposals on 3 May 2019.

10.2.5 During this negotiation process it became apparent that the value engineering
changes which would be required to achieve the desired cost savings were
those which significantly changed the cladding materials and the façade
appearance of Marian Court.

10.2.6 Due to the significant design and planning risks associated with the above
changes, on 12 June 2019 the Council informed bidders of its decision to:

● Pause the Negotiated Procedure;
● Commission a redesign of the external envelope of the Marian Court scheme;
● Seek planning permission for the design changes; and
● Procure and commence demolition works and ground testing in parallel and

under a separate contract, in order to de-risk the site.

10.2.7 A second round of meetings was held on 24 June 2019, to discuss this
approach with the bidders. At these meetings all three of the contractors
confirmed their interest to participate in a separate tender exercise for the
demolition works at Marian Court.

Re-design

10.2.8 A detailed scope for the re-design was defined, and a fee proposal and
programme for the changes were sought from the project architect and the
project EA.

10.2.9 Following an impact and benefit analysis of the re-design proposal, which
took into consideration additional fees, expected savings, risks and associated
programme delays, it was concluded that the benefits of proceeding with the
project without these design changes outweighed the benefits achievable
through a re-design. This is because a redesign would have resulted in further
significant project delays, and due to rising build costs, a large part of the
savings generated would likely have been absorbed by build cost inflation.
Based on these considerations, the re-design option was rejected.

Invitation to submit Best and Final Offer (BAFO) Tender

10.2.10 On 17 April 2020 the Council therefore wrote to the bidders to inform them
of its intention to abandon the option of a re-design, to recommence the
Negotiated Procedure and invite contractors’ BAFO tenders for the main
construction works at Marian Court, with only minor amendments including:

● A limited value engineering materials rationalisation and re-specification;

Page 49



● The inclusion of additional sprinklers in response to changing building
safety guidance and regulations; and

● Changes to the energy strategy.

10.2.11 The BAFO Invitation to Tender was published on Pro-Contract on 27 July
2020.

10.2.12 Three tenders were received on 26 October 2020.

10.2.13 The Evaluation Panel for the BAFO tender process consisted of the same
evaluators as that for the original ITT (see 8.1.2), and BAFO tenders were
awarded in accordance with the original Invitation to Tender award criteria.

Quality Evaluation - 30%

10.2.14 As for the initial Invitation to Tender, for the Quality element of the BAFO ITT,
bidders were required to set out eight Method Statements addressing the
following quality criteria:

● Programme;
● Project delivery;
● Project risks;
● Site logistics;
● Design integrity and design team;
● Community engagement;
● Local employment, training, and supply chain; and
● Commitment to paying the London Living Wage (pass/fail criterion).

10.2.15 Site visits undertaken as part of the original evaluation were taken into
account at BAFO stage.

10.2.16 Quality responses were evaluated by the panel and scored based on the
tender evaluation methodology set out in the BAFO ITT. The moderation of
quality scores was concluded at a moderation meeting on 26 November 2020.

Price Evaluation - 70%

10.2.17 Quotes for utility connections and diversions could not be updated ahead
of the tender issue due to:

● Long lead-in times which would have significantly delayed the tender
process; and/or

● unknown project energy loads pending the detailed design of the new energy
strategy, which will be delivered by the winning contractor’s design team.

10.2.18 As recommended by the project Employer’s Agent, bidders were therefore

Page 50



instructed to include a provisional sum defined by the project’s Quantity
Surveyor (QS) for this element within their tender proposal, but were required
to submit fixed prices for all other elements of the tender.

10.2.19 The prices were scored using the published pricing evaluation methodology:
whereby the lowest priced bid achieves the highest score of 70%, with all the
other prices scored relative to the highest scored price. Prices were also
assessed against the pre-tender estimates prepared by the project QS.

10.2.20 A summary of the quality and price scores from January 2021 for each
tender, and the respective total overall scores are set out in the table below,
illustrating that Bidder C was the most economically advantageous tender
(MEAT) for the revised design and specification at Marian Court:

10.2.21 Revised scores, following the most recent extension by contractors are
illustrated in the last table below, and reflect the price fluctuations valid until
March 31, 2022, which have resulted from the delay to award the contract
following CPC conditional approval in January 2021.

Table 1: Summary of tender evaluations from BAFO submissions (as at
January 2021 and valid to April 2021) as set out in Exempt Appendix 1

Bidder A B C

Cost (70%) 69.75% 59.66% 70.00%

Quality (30%) 20.80% 17.80% 25.10%

Total 90.55% 77.46% 95.10%

Position 2 3 1

Table 2: Summary of tender evaluation from April 2021 submissions (valid to
October 2021) as set out in Exempt Appendix 2

Bidder A B C

Cost (70%) 70.00% 65.32% 68.05%

Quality (30%) 20.80% 17.80% 25.10%

Total 90.80% 83.12% 95.15%

Position 2 3 1

Table 3: Revised scores, following the most recent extension by contractors to

Page 51



March 31, 2022 Exempt Appendix 3

Bidder A B C

Cost (70%) 70.00% 68.61 % 69.53 %

Quality (30%) 20.80% 17.80% 25.10%

Total 90.80% 86.71% 94.63%

Position 2 3 1

10.2.22 On the basis of the above scores, Bidder C is still the most economically
advantageous tender (MEAT) for the revised design and specification. It is
therefore recommended that Bidder C is awarded the contract for the main
works at Marian Court.

10.3 Recommendation:

10.3.1 The preferred bidder was selected using the award criteria and scoring
methodology set out in the BAFO ITT. Their approach was accepted by CPC in
January 2021 and the contract award was delegated with conditions. The
recommendations in 3.1 and 3.2 are to enter into a JCT Design and Build
contract 2016 as set out in Exempt Appendix 3. This protects the Council
against further abortive costs.

10.3.2 Bidder C still achieves the highest score overall in terms of quality and price
combined. Their responses to the tender demonstrated an excellent
understanding of the project's constraints and risks, a good approach to health
and safety, minimising disruption, communicating well with stakeholders, and
providing employment and skills opportunities. As such their bid is still deemed
to be the most economically advantageous tender.

10.3.3 The requirement for a performance bond and parent company guarantee are
included in the contract to mitigate the risk of Bidder C failing to perform
contractual obligations or becoming insolvent. This is a typical requirement for
new build development projects.

10.3.4 A full analysis of the bids is included in Exempt Appendix 3.

10.3.5 It is recommended that the contract for Marian Court is awarded to Bidder C

10.3.6 This will minimise the risk of further delays to a start on site required to be
agreed as part of the main works contract, and will also enable a seamless
handover of site management responsibilities between the demolition and main
works  contractors

Page 52



11. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

11.1 Resources and Project Management (Roles and Responsibilities):

11.1.1 The necessary resources and skills to ensure that the project will be
successfully managed have been identified and are either available within the
Council or have been procured externally.

11.1.2 The project will be managed by a Project Manager in Regeneration who will
be overseen by the Estate Regeneration Head of Service. The project delivery
team is:

● Project Sponsor – Director, Regeneration
● Project Head of Service – Head of Estate Regeneration Programme
● Project Lead – Project Manager, Estate Regeneration Programme
● Design Advice – Strategic Design Team
● Employer’s Agent;
● Cost consultants/Quantity Surveyor.

11.1.3 During the pre-construction and construction periods, the Marian Court Phase
3 & 4 project will be managed on a day-to-day basis by the Project Manager in
the Council’s Estate Regeneration team. The building contract will be
administered by the Council’s Employer’s Agent. The Employer’s Agent and
Quantity Surveyor team will carry out monthly valuations of works completed on
site and certify the value of these works. During the Pre-Construction Phase,
the Employer’s Agent will attend contract Design Team Meetings, which will be
programmed by the contractor, but are likely to take place at least monthly (or
as required) in order to meet the contract programme.

11.1.4 The contractor’s project manager and construction contract manager will
report monthly to the Council’s Project Manager, with updates provided
regularly to the Council’s Director, Regeneration as project sponsor. The
Employer’s Agent will also act as Clerk of Works to ensure that a
comprehensive monitoring service is provided to the Council, to make sure that
the quality of workmanship and finishes of the homes and public realm are
delivered as intended.

11.1.5 It is anticipated that enabling/investigative works will start on site in May
2022. The timeline below sets out the key milestones and dates, and is subject
to the discharge of pre-commencement planning conditions.

Page 53



Key milestones and dates

Report to CPIC seeking approval to Award
Contract for main works

7 March 2022

Decision and standstill letter issued 8 March 2022

Standstill period 8-22 March 2022

Proposed contract signing 28 March 2022

Proposed start on site (construction) June 2022

Practical Completion December 2025

11.2 Key Performance Indicators

11.2.1 The key performance indicators (KPIs) that have been included in the tender
documentation and on which the contractor will be assessed are as follows:

KPI Subject Measurement Monitoring Method and Info
Responsibility

Metric

Programme Total days early or delayed Contractor to update programme
monthly and provide reasons for
delays.
EA to assess contractor report
and provide own final monthly
view.

Nr. of Days

Monthly days early or delayed As above Nr. of Days

Days not yet subject to a valid
EoT Claim

EA to report monthly Nr. of Days

Accuracy, timeliness and quality
of contractor’s programme /
delay reporting

EA to assess monthly Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Cost Divergence between Original
Cumulative Forecast and Last
Valuation

Contractor to make applications.
EA to report monthly.

£ difference on Total
Gross Value

Divergence between last
Monthly Forecast and Last
Valuation

As above £ difference on
Monthly Gross Value

Divergence between
Application and Agreed
Valuation (or Pay Less Notice
amount)

EA to value and report monthly. £ difference on Total
Gross Value

Change
Control

Contractor Proposed Changes
– Quality and timeliness of

EA to assess monthly Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Page 54



design, time and cost
information.

Employer Proposed Changes –
Responsiveness of design and
cost information (including
detail and breakdowns)

EA to assess monthly Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Employer Proposed Changes –
Accuracy of Final Cost

EA to assess monthly Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Completion and completeness
of Change Request form (min 2
weeks prior to consent
deadline)

EA to assess monthly Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Quality of
Construction

Resident satisfaction with
homes

LBH to draft and carry out post
completion survey

TBA Satisfaction
Scores 1 – 10

Assessment of Site Inspector
Report (seriousness of quality
concerns identified).

EA to assess monthly Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Assessment of Contractor
response to remediating Site
Inspector concerns.

EA to assess monthly Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Defects – Total Number
Reported

Contractor and LBH to provide
information to EA for monitoring
and report monthly from practical
completion.

Nr. of defects

Defects – Number remedied
within timeframes

As above Nr. of defects

Defects – Number remedied
beyond timeframes

As above Nr. of defects

Defects – Number of defects
that have recurred after initial
visit

As above Nr. of defects

Health &
Safety

Number of Near Miss Accidents Contractor to report monthly. Nr. of near misses

Number of RIDDOR reportable
Accidents

Contractor to report monthly. Nr. of RIDDOR reports

Qualitative Assessment of
Contractor H&S approach
including site assessment by
PD and response to H&S
concerns including accidents
and near misses.

Contractor to provide own H&S
assessments and information.
EA and PD to assess.

Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Design Timeliness of General Design
Information Release to allow
sufficient time for Employer
review.

Contractor to report days early or
delay from Information Release
Schedule Targets.
EA to check and report.

Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Artist’s
Commission

Quality and timeliness of
information and communication
with Muf Architecture as

Contractor and Muf Architecture
to report.
EA to assess.

Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Page 55



suppliers of Artist’s Commission
elements.

Employment Number of Apprentices Contractor to report monthly. Nr. of operatives

% if Local Labour Contractor to report monthly. % of operatives

Confirmation of London Living
Wage

Contractor to report monthly on
checks and confirm London
Living Wage compliance.

Yes / No

Quality of engagement and
communication with Hackney
Works

Contractor and Hackney Works
(through LBH Project Officer) to
report. EA to assess.

Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Community
Engagement

Number of verbal or written
complaints received from
residents.

Contractor to report monthly. Nr. of complaints

Assessment of the quality and
timeliness of response to
residents.

Contractor to report monthly.
EA to assess.

Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Assessment of compliance with
contractor’s own Community
Engagement targets as set out
in Qualitative Bid Submission

Contractor to report monthly.
EA to assess.

Qualitative
Assessment / 5

Environmental Waste volume diverted from
landfill

Contractor to report monthly as
per tipping certificates against
own target given in Qualitative
Bid Submission.

% diverted.

12. COMMENTS OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE
RESOURCES

12.1 On 6 November 2017 Cabinet Procurement Committee agreed a Business
Case in respect of a tender process for the appointment of a contractor to
undertake the works at the Marian Court development. Therefore in accordance
with Contract Standing Order 2.7.10 the decision to award the contract will now
be with Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee.

12.2 Details of the procurement process undertaken by officers are set out in this
Report. Cabinet Procurement and Incourcing Committee should note that the
initial procurement, the finances of the tender recommended for acceptance are
detailed in the Exempt Appendices. Due to building requirements and design
developments, the value of the procurement increased by 20% above the
provision previously set aside (and established as the contract budget) to fund
Marian Court construction costs. This additional cost has been factored into the
scheme’s and the programme’s financial appraisals and they still remain viable,
but the programme contingency has reduced.

12.3 The construction market has been affected by supply and labour shortages due
to Brexit and Covid, and the delivery of the scheme has been impacted by

Page 56



unrelated delays and so the tender price represents value for money and
therefore is supported.

13. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE

13.1 On 6 November 2017 Cabinet Procurement Committee agreed a Business
Case in respect of a tender process for the appointment of a contractor to
undertake the works at the Marian Court development. Therefore in accordance
with Contract Standing Order 2.7.10 the decision to award the contract will be
with Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee.

13.2 Details of the procurement process undertaken by officers are set out in this
report. Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee should note that the
initial procurement exercise did not result in the receipt of acceptable bids from
tenderers and therefore officers subsequently used the Negotiated Procedure
without prior publication to seek further bids.

13.3 It is proposed to award the main works contract to Bidder C. Subject to
approval, it is then proposed to enter into a JCT Design and Build contract 2016
with the appointed contractor, as set out in Exempt Appendix 3.

14. COMMENTS OF THE PROCUREMENT CATEGORY LEAD

14.1 This report provides the Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee with
the outcome of the procurement exercise undertaken to secure a contractor for
the construction of a development that will deliver 160 new residential
properties in the borough. In spite of the challenges encountered during the
tendering process, officers have deployed a meticulous approach in selecting a
contractor that will not only effectively deliver the development, but also work
with the Council to deliver wider community benefits for the people of Hackney.

14.2 The proposed award is supported on the basis that the recommended
contractor has submitted the most economically advantageous tender for the
revised design and specification put to the market through the negotiated
procurement procedure. As detailed in the report, Bidder C has also
demonstrated a clear understanding of Council’s commitment to the delivery of
sustainability and social value outcomes, and submitted a proposal which
meets the Council’s expectations in this regard.

APPENDICES
Exempt Appendix 1 - Marian Court Phase 3 & 4 Tender Report (December 2020)
Exempt Appendix 2 - Marian Court Phase 3 & 4 Tender Report (September 2021)
Exempt Appendix 3 - Marian Court Phase 3 & 4 Tender Report (February 2022)

EXEMPT

Page 57

https://drive.google.com/file/d/132hhByEM98zKLX3S0XhLpikYR_mxhtTP/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11yfaRtBFz6iG43wWqwaEs6NSWqjmQYpa/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xTYj28KGEIjLFIb0YCKmueGQ70HTrIiW/view?usp=sharing


By Virtue of Paragraph(s) 3, Part 1 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972 this report and/or appendix is exempt because it contains information relating
to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority
holding the information) and it is considered that the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

In accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings
and Access to Information) England Regulations 2012 publication of
Background Papers used in the preparation of reports is required.

Report Author Max Anderson - 020 8356 4793
Project Manager
max.anderson@hackney.gov.uk

Comments for and on behalf
of the Group Director of
Finance and Corporate
Resources

Simon Theobald 020 8356 4304
Head of Finance
simon.theobald@hackney.gov.uk

Comments for and on behalf
of the Director of Legal and
Governance Services

Patrick Rodger - 020 8356 6187
Senior Lawyer, Legal Services
Patrick.Rodger@hackney.gov.uk

Comments of Procurement
Category Lead

Candace Bloomfield - 020 8356 2002
Directorate Category Lead
candace.bloomfield@hackney.gov.uk

Page 58



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Unrestricted Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee Held on 14 February 2022
	Minutes
	7 NH S055 APPOINTMENT OF DOCKLESS BIKE-SHARE SCHEME OPERATORS IN HACKNEY - CONTRACT APPROVAL

	8 FCR S071 Vehicle Removals and Car Pound Services
	Appendix 3 - Key Performance Indicators Vehicle Removals and Car Pound Services

	9 CED S069 Contract Award Report for the Selection of a Contractor for the Main Works for Marian Court
	12 FCR S071 Vehicle Removals and Car Pound Services - Exempt Appendices
	13 CED S069 Contract Award Report for the Selection of a Contractor for the Main Works for Marian Court - Exempt appendices
	2021.09.30 - Tender Report - Marian Court
	2022.02.24 - Tender Report - Marian Court - Rev C


